
UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

☒ Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2025
☐ Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the transition period from _______ to _______

Commission File Number: 001-37848

KINSALE CAPITAL GROUP, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 98-0664337
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification Number)

2035 Maywill Street
Suite 100

Richmond, Virginia 23230
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)

(804) 289-1300
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share KNSL New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days.    Yes  ☒   No  ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files).    Yes  ☒    No  ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth
company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company," and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ☒ Accelerated filer ☐ Non-accelerated filer ☐ Smaller reporting company ☐ Emerging growth
company ☐

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial
accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes  ☐     No  ☒

Number of shares of the registrant's common stock outstanding at April 18, 2025: 23,311,435



Table of Contents

KINSALE CAPITAL GROUP, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements 4
Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2025 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2024 4

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Unaudited) for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2025 and
2024

5

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (Unaudited) for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2025 and
2024

6

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited) for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 7
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) 8

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 27
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 44
Item 4. Controls and Procedures 44

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 46
Item 1A. Risk Factors 46
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 47
Item 5. Other Information 47
Item 6. Exhibits 48

Signatures 49

1



Table of Contents

Forward-Looking Statements
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements, within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Forward-looking statements include any statement that does not directly relate to historical or current fact. These statements may discuss, among others, our
future financial performance, our business prospects and strategy, our anticipated financial position, liquidity and capital, dividends and general market and
industry conditions. You can identify forward-looking statements by words such as "anticipates," "estimates," "expects," "intends," "plans," "predicts,"
"projects," "believes," "seeks," "outlook," "future," "will," "would," "should," "could," "may," "can have," "prospects" or similar terms. Forward-looking
statements are based on management’s current expectations and assumptions about future events, which are subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in
circumstances that are difficult to predict. These statements are only predictions and are not guarantees of future performance. Actual results may differ
materially from those contemplated by a forward-looking statement. Factors that may cause such differences include, without limitation:

• the possibility that our loss reserves may be inadequate to cover our actual losses, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows;

• the inherent uncertainty of models resulting in actual losses that are materially different than our estimates;

• the failure of any of the loss limitations or exclusions we employ, or change in other claims or coverage issues, having a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or results of operations;

• the inability to obtain reinsurance coverage at reasonable prices and on terms that adequately protect us;

• the possibility that severe weather conditions and catastrophes, including due to climate change, pandemics and similar events adversely affecting our
business, results of operations and financial condition;

• adverse economic factors, including recession, inflation, periods of high unemployment or lower economic activity resulting in the sale of fewer
policies than expected or an increase in frequency or severity of claims and premium defaults or both, affecting our growth and profitability;

• a decline in our financial strength rating adversely affecting the amount of business we write;

• the potential loss of one or more key executives or an inability to attract and retain qualified personnel adversely affecting our results of operations;

• our reliance on a select group of brokers;

• the changing market conditions of our excess and surplus lines ("E&S") insurance operations, as well as the cyclical nature of our business, affecting
our financial performance;

• our employees taking excessive risks;

• the intense competition for business in our industry;

• the effects of litigation having an adverse effect on our business;

• the performance of our investment portfolio adversely affecting our financial results;

• the ability to pay dividends being dependent on our ability to obtain cash dividends or other permitted payments from our insurance subsidiary;

• being forced to sell investments to meet our liquidity requirements;
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• our credit agreements contain a number of financial and other covenants, the breach of which could result in acceleration of payment of amounts due
under our borrowings;

• extensive regulation adversely affecting our ability to achieve our business objectives or the failure to comply with these regulations adversely
affecting our financial condition and results of operations; and

• the other risks and uncertainties discussed in Part I, Item 1A of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made. Except as expressly required under federal securities laws or the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), we do not assume any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements
attributable to us are expressly qualified by these cautionary statements.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

KINSALE CAPITAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)

March 31,
2025

December 31,
2024

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Assets
Investments:

Fixed-maturity securities, available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost: $3,808,346, allowance for
credit losses: $47 – 2025; $3,663,031 and $27 – 2024) $ 3,716,253  $ 3,537,563 

Equity securities, at fair value (cost: $345,402 – 2025; $313,722 – 2024) 433,077  398,359 
Real estate investments, net 15,045  15,045 
Short-term investments 38,816  3,714 

Total investments 4,203,191  3,954,681 
Cash and cash equivalents 142,026  113,213 
Investment income due and accrued 27,146  27,366 
Premiums and fees receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $27,999 – 2025; $26,926 – 2024 148,565  140,027 
Reinsurance recoverables, net of allowance for credit losses of $932 – 2025; $932 – 2024 374,115  337,891 
Ceded unearned premiums 54,073  52,736 
Deferred policy acquisition costs, net of ceding commissions 112,313  109,263 
Intangible assets 3,538  3,538 
Deferred income tax asset, net 50,313  60,215 
Other assets 99,719  87,774 

Total assets $ 5,214,999  $ 4,886,704 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities:
Reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 2,470,643  $ 2,285,668 
Unearned premiums 845,701  828,449 
Payable to reinsurers 44,766  43,959 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 22,962  55,159 
Debt 184,191  184,122 
Other liabilities 63,761  5,786 

Total liabilities 3,632,024  3,403,143 

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized, 23,353,592 and 23,307,618 shares issued
and outstanding at March 31, 2025; 23,294,783 and 23,272,157 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2024 234  233 

Additional paid-in capital 359,154  361,398 
Retained earnings 1,314,410  1,229,136 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (70,824) (97,206)
Treasury stock, at cost (45,974 shares – 2025, 22,626 – 2024) (19,999) (10,000)

Total stockholders’ equity 1,582,975  1,483,561 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 5,214,999  $ 4,886,704 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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KINSALE CAPITAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024
(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
Gross written premiums $ 484,275  $ 448,644 
Ceded written premiums (102,570) (97,590)

Net written premiums 381,705  351,054 
Change in unearned premiums (15,915) (41,536)

Net earned premiums 365,790  309,518 
Fee income 9,559  8,092 
Net investment income 43,819  32,933 
Change in the fair value of equity securities 3,038  18,053 
Net realized investment gains 537  3,866 
Change in allowance for credit losses on investments (20) 10 
Other income 674  319 

Total revenues 423,397  372,791 

Expenses:
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 232,976  186,786 
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses 74,912  65,753 
Interest expense 2,538  2,422 
Other expenses 660  1,963 

Total expenses 311,086  256,924 
Income before income taxes 112,311  115,867 

Total income tax expense 23,084  16,926 
Net income 89,227  98,941 

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Change in net unrealized losses on available-for-sale investments, net of taxes 26,382  (9,940)

Total comprehensive income $ 115,609  $ 89,001 

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 3.85  $ 4.28 
Diluted $ 3.83  $ 4.24 

Weighted-average shares outstanding:
Basic 23,170  23,108 
Diluted 23,313  23,335 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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KINSALE CAPITAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (Unaudited)

Shares of
Common Stock Common Stock

Additional
Paid-in Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumu-
lated

 Other
Compre-
hensive

Loss
Treasury Stock,

at Cost

Total
Stock-

holders' Equity
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Balance at December 31, 2024 23,272,157  $ 233  $ 361,398  $ 1,229,136  $ (97,206) $ (10,000) $ 1,483,561 
Issuance of common stock under stock-based compensation

plan 73,276  1  234  —  —  —  235 
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  3,770  —  —  —  3,770 
Restricted shares withheld for taxes (14,467) —  (6,248) —  —  —  (6,248)
Dividends declared ($0.17 per share) —  —  —  (3,953) —  —  (3,953)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax —  —  —  —  26,382  —  26,382 
Net income —  —  —  89,227  —  —  89,227 
Treasury stock acquired – share repurchases (23,348) —  —  —  —  (9,999) (9,999)

Balance at March 31, 2025 23,307,618  $ 234  $ 359,154  $ 1,314,410  $ (70,824) $ (19,999) $ 1,582,975 

Balance at December 31, 2023 23,181,919  $ 232  $ 352,970  $ 828,247  $ (94,617) $ —  $ 1,086,832 
Issuance of common stock under stock-based compensation

plan 105,314  1  932  —  —  —  933 
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  3,524  —  —  —  3,524 
Restricted shares withheld for taxes (11,318) —  (5,842) —  —  —  (5,842)
Dividends declared ($0.15 per share) —  —  —  (3,479) —  —  (3,479)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax —  —  —  —  (9,940) —  (9,940)
Net income —  —  —  98,941  —  —  98,941 

Balance at March 31, 2024 23,275,915  $ 233  $ 351,584  $ 923,709  $ (104,557) $ —  $ 1,170,969 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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KINSALE CAPITAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)
Operating activities:
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 229,779  $ 210,359 

Investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (12,139) (3,511)
Purchase of real estate investment —  (227)
Change in short-term investments, net (34,999) — 
Purchases – fixed-maturity securities (369,457) (297,392)
Purchases – equity securities (42,710) (49,766)
Sales – fixed-maturity securities 106,974  67,795 
Sales – equity securities 11,585  10,123 
Maturities and calls – fixed-maturity securities 144,678  80,464 
Other 15,107  — 

Net cash used in investing activities (180,961) (192,514)

Financing activities:
Payroll taxes withheld and remitted on share-based payments (6,248) (5,842)
Proceeds from stock options exercised 235  933 
Dividends paid (3,993) (3,498)
Treasury stock acquired – share repurchases (9,999) — 

Net cash used in financing activities (20,005) (8,407)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 28,813  9,438 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 113,213  126,694 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 142,026  $ 136,132 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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KINSALE CAPITAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

1.    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
("U.S. GAAP") for interim financial information and do not contain all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial
statements. As such, these unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements of Kinsale Capital Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries ("the Company") included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2024. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the condensed consolidated financial statements have been included.
Such adjustments consist only of normal recurring items. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Interim
results are not necessarily indicative of results of operations for the full year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, if any, at the date of the condensed consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Recently adopted accounting pronouncements

Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2023-07, Segment Reporting - Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU 2023-07, "Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable
Segment Disclosures," which expands reportable segment disclosure requirements by requiring disclosures of significant reportable segment expenses that are
regularly provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") and included within each reported measure of a segment's profit or loss. The ASU also
requires disclosure of the title and position of the individual identified as the CODM and an explanation of how the CODM uses the reported measures of a
segment's profit or loss in assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources. Additionally, ASU 2023-07 requires all segment profit or
loss and assets disclosures to be provided on an annual and interim basis. ASU 2023-07 became effective for the Company for the year ended December 31,
2024 and is effective for interim periods within 2025. Refer to Note 15 for the Company's segment reporting disclosures.
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Prospective accounting pronouncements

ASU 2024-03, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income - Expense Disaggregation Disclosures

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, "Income Statement-Reporting Comprehensive Income-Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220-
40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses," requiring public entities to disclose additional information about specific expense categories in the notes
to the financial statements on an interim and annual basis. ASU 2024-03 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2026, and for interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2027, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effect the guidance will have on its disclosures.

2.     Investments

Available-for-sale investments

The following tables summarize the available-for-sale investments at March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024:

March 31, 2025

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized

Gains
Gross Unrealized

Losses
Allowance for
Credit Losses

Estimated Fair
Value

(in thousands)
Fixed-maturity securities:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
government agencies $ 7,833  $ 9  $ (292) $ —  $ 7,550 

Obligations of states, municipalities and political
subdivisions 164,845  223  (20,703) (5) 144,360 

Corporate and other securities 2,117,109  12,026  (41,988) (42) 2,087,105 
Asset-backed securities 737,396  6,000  (671) —  742,725 
Residential mortgage-backed securities 554,216  2,412  (46,609) —  510,019 
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 226,947  1,054  (3,507) —  224,494 

Total fixed-maturity securities $ 3,808,346  $ 21,724  $ (113,770) $ (47) $ 3,716,253 

December 31, 2024

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized

Gains
Gross Unrealized

Losses
Allowance for
Credit Losses

Estimated Fair
Value

(in thousands)
Fixed-maturity securities:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
government agencies $ 15,465  $ —  $ (417) $ —  $ 15,048 

Obligations of states, municipalities and political
subdivisions 168,894  46  (22,633) (3) 146,304 

Corporate and other securities 2,037,372  5,779  (53,638) (23) 1,989,490 
Asset-backed securities 729,658  4,606  (1,522) —  732,742 
Residential mortgage-backed securities 502,121  747  (53,994) —  448,874 
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 209,521  423  (4,838) (1) 205,105 

Total fixed-maturity securities $ 3,663,031  $ 11,601  $ (137,042) $ (27) $ 3,537,563 
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Available-for-sale securities in a loss position

The Company regularly reviews all its available-for-sale investments with unrealized losses to assess whether the decline in the fair value is deemed to be a
credit loss. The Company considers a number of factors in completing its review of credit losses, including the extent to which a security's fair value has been
below cost and the financial condition of an issuer. In addition to specific issuer information, the Company also evaluates the current market and interest rate
environment. Generally, a decline in a security’s value caused by a change in the market or interest rate environment does not constitute a credit loss.

For fixed-maturity securities, the Company also considers whether it intends to sell the security or, if it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell the
security before recovery, and its ability to recover all amounts outstanding when contractually due. When assessing whether it intends to sell a fixed-maturity
security or, if it is likely to be required to sell a fixed-maturity security before recovery of its amortized cost, the Company evaluates facts and circumstances
including, but not limited to, decisions to reposition the investment portfolio, potential sales of investments to meet cash flow needs and potential sales of
investments to capitalize on favorable pricing.

For fixed-maturity securities where a decline in fair value is below the amortized cost basis and the Company intends to sell the security, or it is more likely
than not that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost, an impairment is recognized in net income based on the
fair value of the security at the time of assessment. For fixed-maturity securities that the Company does not intend to sell or for which it is more likely than not
that the Company would not be required to sell before recovery of its amortized cost, the Company compares the estimated present value of the cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized cost of the security. Inputs into the cash flow analysis include default rates and recoverability rates based on credit
rating. The extent to which the estimated present value of the cash flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost of the security represents the
credit-related portion of the impairment, which is recognized in net income through an allowance for credit losses. Any remaining decline in fair value
represents the noncredit portion of the impairment, which is recognized in other comprehensive income.

The Company reports investment income due and accrued separately from available-for-sale investments and has elected not to measure an allowance for credit
losses for investment income due and accrued. Investment income due and accrued is written off through earnings at the time the issuer of the bond defaults or
is expected to default on payments.

At March 31, 2025, the Company's credit loss review resulted in an allowance for credit losses on four securities. The following table presents changes in the
allowance for expected credit losses on available-for-sale securities for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)

Beginning balance $ 27  $ 553 
Increase to allowance from securities for which credit losses were not previously recorded —  — 
Reduction from securities sold during the period (12) — 
Net increase (decrease) from securities that had an allowance at the beginning of the period 32  (10)
Ending balance $ 47  $ 543 
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The following tables summarize gross unrealized losses and estimated fair value for available-for-sale investments by length of time that the securities have
continuously been in an unrealized loss position:

March 31, 2025
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Estimated Fair
Value

Gross Unrealized
Losses

Estimated Fair
Value

Gross Unrealized
Losses

Estimated Fair
Value

Gross Unrealized
Losses

(in thousands)
Fixed-maturity securities:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of
the U.S. government agencies $ 292  $ (3) $ 6,692  $ (289) $ 6,984  $ (292)

Obligations of states, municipalities and
political subdivisions 8,283  (130) 119,497  (20,573) 127,780  (20,703)

Corporate and other securities 415,687  (3,265) 435,932  (38,723) 851,619  (41,988)
Asset-backed securities 125,835  (178) 17,249  (493) 143,084  (671)
Residential mortgage-backed securities 78,009  (502) 237,420  (46,107) 315,429  (46,609)
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 66,070  (293) 53,611  (3,214) 119,681  (3,507)

Total fixed-maturity securities $ 694,176  $ (4,371) $ 870,401  $ (109,399) $ 1,564,577  $ (113,770)

At March 31, 2025, the Company held 848 fixed-maturity securities in an unrealized loss position with a total estimated fair value of $1.6 billion and gross
unrealized losses of $113.8 million. Of these securities, 593 were in a continuous unrealized loss position for greater than one year. As discussed above, the
Company regularly reviews all fixed-maturity securities within its investment portfolio to determine whether a credit loss has occurred. Based on the
Company's review as of March 31, 2025, except for securities previously discussed, unrealized losses were caused by interest rate changes or other market
factors and were not credit-specific issues. At March 31, 2025, 79.7% of the Company’s fixed-maturity securities were rated "A-" or better and all of the
Company’s fixed-maturity securities made expected coupon payments under the contractual terms of the securities.
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December 31, 2024
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Estimated Fair
Value

Gross Unrealized
Losses

Estimated Fair
Value

Gross Unrealized
Losses

Estimated Fair
Value

Gross Unrealized
Losses

(in thousands)

Fixed-maturity securities:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of
U.S. government agencies $ 838  $ (13) $ 14,210  $ (404) $ 15,048  $ (417)

Obligations of states, municipalities and
political subdivisions 27,049  (417) 114,620  (22,216) 141,669  (22,633)

Corporate and other securities 667,645  (9,139) 493,598  (44,499) 1,161,243  (53,638)
Asset-backed securities 121,371  (943) 24,656  (579) 146,027  (1,522)
Residential mortgage-backed securities 144,955  (1,934) 237,514  (52,060) 382,469  (53,994)
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 92,024  (960) 53,812  (3,878) 145,836  (4,838)
Total fixed-maturity securities $ 1,053,882  $ (13,406) $ 938,410  $ (123,636) $ 1,992,292  $ (137,042)

Contractual maturities of available-for-sale fixed-maturity securities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale fixed-maturity securities at March 31, 2025 are summarized, by contractual maturity, as
follows:

March 31, 2025
Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value
(in thousands)

Due in one year or less $ 410,141  $ 410,644 
Due after one year through five years 1,080,085  1,076,016 
Due after five years through ten years 569,277  560,390 
Due after ten years 230,284  191,965 
Asset-backed securities 737,396  742,725 
Residential mortgage-backed securities 554,216  510,019 
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 226,947  224,494 

Total fixed-maturity securities $ 3,808,346  $ 3,716,253 

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties, and the lenders may have the right to put the securities back to the borrower.
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Real estate investments

Real estate investments represents directly owned property held for investment purposes and consisted of land with a carrying value of $15.0 million at
March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. There was no accumulated depreciation on real estate investments at March 31, 2025 and December 31,
2024.

Net investment income

The following table presents the components of net investment income for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)

Interest:
Taxable bonds $ 41,482  $ 31,391 
Tax exempt municipal bonds 356  439 
Cash equivalents and short-term investments 1,130  543 

Dividends on equity securities 1,953  1,376 
Real estate investment income —  153 

Gross investment income 44,921  33,902 
Investment expenses (1,102) (969)

Net investment income $ 43,819  $ 32,933 

There was no depreciation expense related to real estate investments for the three months ended March 31, 2025 or three months ended March 31, 2024 as the
Company sold the related assets during 2023.

Realized investment gains and losses

The following table presents realized investment gains and losses for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)
Fixed-maturity securities:

Realized gains $ 773  $ 95 
Realized losses (791) (106)
Net realized losses from fixed-maturity securities (18) (11)

Equity securities:
Realized gains 2,465  3,881 
Realized losses (1,910) — 
Net realized gains from equity securities 555  3,881 

Realized losses on sale of real estate investments —  (4)
Net realized investment gains $ 537  $ 3,866 
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The net realized gains or losses on sales of equity securities represent the total gains or losses from the purchase dates of the equity securities. The change in
unrealized gains (losses) in the consolidated statement of income consists of two components: (1) the reversal of the gain or loss recognized in previous periods
on equity securities sold and (2) the change in unrealized gain or loss resulting from mark-to-market adjustments on equity securities still held.

Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on fixed-maturity securities

For the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, the change in net unrealized gains (losses) for fixed-maturity securities was $33.4 million and $(12.6)
million, respectively.

Insurance – statutory deposits

The Company had invested assets with a fair value of $3.9 million and $3.7 million on deposit with state regulatory authorities at March 31, 2025 and
December 31, 2024, respectively.

Payable for investments purchased

The Company recorded a payable for investments purchased, not yet settled, of $37.7 million at March 31, 2025. The Company did not have a payable for
investments purchased at December 31, 2024, respectively. The payable balance was included in the "other liabilities" line item of the consolidated balance
sheet.

3.     Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is estimated for each class of financial instrument based on the framework established in the fair value accounting guidance. Fair value is defined as
the price in the principal market that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability to facilitate an orderly transaction between market participants
on the measurement date. Market participants are assumed to be independent, knowledgeable, able and willing to transact an exchange and not acting under
duress. Fair value hierarchy disclosures are based on the quality of inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
Adjustments to transaction prices or quoted market prices may be required in illiquid or disorderly markets in order to estimate fair value.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities traded in active markets.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets
or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable for the asset or liability and are significant to the fair value measurement.

Fair values of the Company's investment portfolio are estimated using unadjusted prices obtained by its investment accounting vendor from nationally
recognized third-party pricing services, where available. Values for U.S. Treasuries, exchange traded funds and common stocks are generally based on Level 1
inputs, which use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. For other fixed-maturity securities and non-redeemable preferred stock, the pricing
vendors use a pricing methodology involving the market approach, including pricing models which use prices and relevant market information regarding a
particular security or securities with similar characteristics to establish a valuation. The estimates of fair value of these investments are included in the amounts
disclosed as
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Level 2. For those investments where significant inputs are unobservable, the Company's investment accounting vendor obtains valuations from pricing
vendors or brokers using the market approach and income approach valuation techniques and are disclosed as Level 3.

Management performs several procedures to ascertain the reasonableness of investment values included in the condensed consolidated financial statements,
including 1) obtaining and reviewing internal control reports from the Company's investment accounting vendor that assess fair values from third party pricing
services, 2) discussing with the Company's investment accounting vendor its process for reviewing and validating pricing obtained from third party pricing
services and 3) reviewing the security pricing received from the Company's investment accounting vendor and monitoring changes in unrealized gains and
losses at the individual security level. The Company has evaluated the various types of securities in its investment portfolio to determine an appropriate fair
value hierarchy level based upon trading activity and the observability of market inputs.

The following tables present the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, by level within
the fair value hierarchy:

March 31, 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(in thousands)

Assets
Fixed-maturity securities:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S. government
agencies $ 7,550  $ —  $ —  $ 7,550 

Obligations of states, municipalities and political subdivisions —  144,360  —  144,360 
Corporate and other securities —  2,087,105  —  2,087,105 
Asset-backed securities —  742,725  —  742,725 
Residential mortgage-backed securities —  510,019  —  510,019 
Commercial mortgage-backed securities —  224,494  —  224,494 
Total fixed-maturity securities 7,550  3,708,703  —  3,716,253 

Equity securities:
Exchange traded funds 123,342  —  —  123,342 
Non-redeemable preferred stock —  26,565  —  26,565 
Common stocks 283,170  —  —  283,170 
Total equity securities 406,512  26,565  —  433,077 

Short-term investments 38,816  —  —  38,816 
Total $ 452,878  $ 3,735,268  $ —  $ 4,188,146 
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December 31, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(in thousands)
Assets
Fixed-maturity securities:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S. government
agencies $ 15,048  $ —  $ —  $ 15,048 

Obligations of states, municipalities and political subdivisions —  146,304  —  146,304 
Corporate and other securities —  1,989,490  —  1,989,490 
Asset-backed securities —  732,742  —  732,742 
Residential mortgage-backed securities —  448,874  —  448,874 
Commercial mortgage-backed securities —  205,105  —  205,105 
Total fixed-maturity securities 15,048  3,522,515  —  3,537,563 

Equity securities:
Exchange traded funds 129,731  —  —  129,731 
Non-redeemable preferred stock —  26,433  —  26,433 
Common stocks 242,195  —  —  242,195 
Total equity securities 371,926  26,433  —  398,359 

Short-term investments 3,714  —  —  3,714 
Total $ 390,688  $ 3,548,948  $ —  $ 3,939,636 

There were no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of March 31, 2025 or December 31, 2024.

The carrying amount of the Company's fixed-rate senior notes was $175.0 million, less debt issuance costs, and the corresponding estimated fair value was
$170.4 million and $168.6 million at March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. The fair value measurement was determined using a discounted
cash flow analysis that factors in current market yields for comparable borrowing arrangements under the Company's credit profile. Since this methodology is
based upon market yields for comparable arrangements, the measurement is categorized as Level 2. The estimated fair value of outstanding borrowings under
the Company's revolving Credit Facility approximated its carrying value at March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024. See Note 13 for further information
regarding the Company's debt arrangements.

The Company holds cash equivalents that are managed as part of its investment portfolio and, due to the short-term maturities of these assets, the carrying
value of these investments approximates fair value. The Company held cash equivalents of $56.1 million and $16.1 million at March 31, 2025 and
December 31, 2024, respectively.

4.     Allowance for Credit Losses

Premiums receivable

Premiums receivable balances are carried at face value, net of any allowance for credit losses. The allowance for credit losses represents an estimate of
amounts considered uncollectible based on the Company’s assessment of the collectability of receivables that are past due. The estimate considers historical
loss data, current and future economic conditions and specific identification of collectability concerns, where applicable. The following table presents the
change in the allowance for credit losses for premiums receivable for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:
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Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)

Beginning balance $ 26,926  $ 13,383 
Current period change for estimated uncollectible premiums 3,124  4,263 
Write-offs of uncollectible premiums receivable (2,051) (2,164)
Ending balance $ 27,999  $ 15,482 

5.     Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

The following table presents the amounts of policy acquisition costs deferred and amortized for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)

Balance, beginning of period $ 109,263  $ 88,395 
Policy acquisition costs deferred:

Direct commissions 71,474  65,555 
Ceding commissions (32,874) (28,446)
Other underwriting and policy acquisition costs 3,680  3,141 

Policy acquisition costs deferred 42,280  40,250 
Amortization of net policy acquisition costs (39,230) (34,156)
Balance, end of period $ 112,313  $ 94,489 

Amortization of net policy acquisition costs is included in the line item "underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses" in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.
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6.     Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are included in "other assets" in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and consist of the following:

March 31, 2025 December 31, 2024
(in thousands)

Building $ 37,190  $ 37,190 
Parking deck 5,072  5,072 
Land 3,068  3,068 
Equipment 4,424  4,401 
Software 21,617  20,203 
Furniture and fixtures 3,244  3,200 
Land improvements 474  474 
Leasehold improvements 153  153 
Construction in progress – building 38,466  26,530 
Property and equipment 113,708  100,291 
Accumulated depreciation (18,732) (17,367)
Total property and equipment, net $ 94,976  $ 82,924 

Construction in progress includes capitalized expenses related to the development of the new corporate headquarters' building. Construction is expected to be
completed in the fourth quarter of 2025.

7.     Underwriting, Acquisition and Insurance Expenses

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 consist of the following:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses incurred:
Direct commissions $ 68,077  $ 58,366 
Ceding commissions (32,397) (26,827)
Other underwriting expenses 39,232  34,214 
Total $ 74,912  $ 65,753 

Other underwriting expenses within underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses include salaries, bonus and employee benefits expenses of $29.2 million
and $24.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

8.    Stock-based Compensation

On July 27, 2016, the Kinsale Capital Group, Inc. 2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "2016 Incentive Plan") became effective. The 2016 Incentive Plan, which
is administered by the Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors, provides for grants of stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and other stock-based awards to officers, employees, directors, independent contractors and
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consultants. The number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2016 Incentive Plan may not exceed 2,073,832.

The total compensation cost that has been charged against income for share-based compensation arrangements was $3.8 million and $3.5 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Restricted Stock Awards

During the three months ended March 31, 2025, the Company granted restricted stock awards under the 2016 Incentive Plan. The restricted stock awards were
valued on the date of grant and will vest over a period of 1 to 4 years corresponding to the anniversary date of the grants. The fair value of restricted stock
awards was determined based on the closing trading price of the Company’s shares on the grant date or, if no shares were traded on the grant date, the last
preceding date for which there was a sale of shares. Except for restrictions placed on the transferability of restricted stock, holders of unvested restricted stock
have full stockholder’s rights, including voting rights and the right to receive dividends. Unvested shares of restricted stock awards and accrued dividends, if
any, are forfeited upon the termination of service to or employment with the Company.

A summary of restricted stock activity under the 2016 Incentive Plan for the three months ended March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2025

Number of Shares
Weighted Average Grant Date

Fair Value per Share
Non-vested outstanding at the beginning of the period 110,123  $ 366.73 

Granted 59,963  $ 433.62 
Vested (43,126) $ 320.81 
Forfeited (1,363) $ 369.04 

Non-vested outstanding at the end of the period 125,597  $ 414.41 

Employees surrender shares to pay for withholding tax obligations resulting from any vesting of restricted stock awards. During the three months ended
March 31, 2025, shares withheld for taxes in connection with the vesting of restricted stock awards totaled 14,467.

The weighted average grant-date fair value per share of the Company's restricted stock awards granted during the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024
was $433.62 and $502.54, respectively. The fair value of restricted stock awards that vested during the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was $18.7
million and $16.9 million, respectively. As of March 31, 2025, the Company had $50.0 million of total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense
expected to be charged to earnings over a weighted-average period of 3.0 years.

Stock Options

On July 27, 2016, the Board of Directors approved, and the Company granted, 1,036,916 stock options with an exercise price equal to the initial public offering
price of $16.00 per share and a weighted-average grant-date fair value of $2.71 per share. The options have a maximum contractual term of 10 years and vested
in 4 equal annual installments following the date of the grant. The value of the options granted was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
pricing model.
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A summary of option activity as of March 31, 2025, and changes during the period then ended are presented below:

Number of Shares
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price

Weighted-Average
Remaining Years of
Contractual Term

Aggregate Intrinsic
Value (in thousands)

Outstanding at January 1, 2025 118,468  $ 16.00 
Granted —  — 
Forfeited —  — 
Exercised (14,676) 16.00 

Outstanding at March 31, 2025 103,792  $ 16.00  1.3 $ 48,856 

Exercisable at March 31, 2025 103,792  $ 16.00  1.3 $ 48,856 

The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $6.3 million and $28.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. 

9.    Earnings Per Share

The following represents a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per share computations contained in the
condensed consolidated financial statements:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands, except per share data)
Net income $ 89,227  $ 98,941 

Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic 23,170  23,108 
Effect of potential dilutive securities:

Conversion of stock options 109  171 
Conversion of restricted stock 34  56 

Weighted average common shares outstanding – diluted 23,313  23,335 

Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 3.85  $ 4.28 

Diluted $ 3.83  $ 4.24 

There were 89,000 and 44,000 anti-dilutive stock awards for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

10. Income Taxes

The Company uses the estimated annual effective tax rate method for calculating its tax provision in interim periods, which represents the Company's best
estimate of the effective tax rate expected for the full year. The estimated annual effective tax rate typically differs from the U.S. statutory tax rate, primarily as
a result of tax-exempt investment income and any discrete items recognized during the period. The Company's effective tax rates were 20.6% and 14.6% for
the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and were lower than the federal statutory rate of 21% due primarily to the tax benefits from
stock-based compensation, including stock options exercised, and from income generated by certain tax-exempt investments. The effective tax rate was higher
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for the three months ended March 31, 2025 due primarily to a lower volume of stock options exercised compared to the same period in 2024.

11.     Reserves For Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The following table presents a reconciliation of consolidated beginning and ending reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses:

March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)
Gross reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, beginning of year $ 2,285,668  $ 1,692,875 
Less: reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 323,060  241,357 

Net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, beginning of year 1,962,608  1,451,518 
Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses:

Current year 247,625  195,232 
Prior years (14,649) (8,446)
Total net losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred 232,976  186,786 

Payments:
Current year 11,869  4,123 
Prior years 71,496  50,599 
Total payments 83,365  54,722 
Net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, end of period 2,112,219  1,583,582 

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 358,424  261,205 
Gross reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, end of period $ 2,470,643  $ 1,844,787 

During the three months ended March 31, 2025, the reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses held at December 31, 2024 developed favorably
by $14.6 million, of which $16.7 million was attributable to the 2021 through 2024 accident years due to lower emergence of reported losses than expected
across most lines of business. This favorable development was offset in part by adverse development primarily from the 2017 through 2019 accident years and
more conservative actuarial assumptions in the 2021 through 2023 accident years for lines of business exposed to construction liability. Current accident year
incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2025 included $22.6 million of net catastrophe losses primarily related to
the Palisades Fire.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, the reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses held at December 31, 2023 developed favorably
by $8.4 million, of which $16.3 million was attributable to the 2021 through 2023 accident years due to lower emergence of reported losses than expected
across most lines of business. This favorable development was offset in part by adverse development primarily from the 2018 and 2019 accident years due to
construction defect claims and from the 2020 accident year due to a large property claim.

21



Table of Contents

12.     Reinsurance

The following table summarizes the effect of reinsurance on premiums written and earned for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)
Premiums written:

Direct $ 484,275  $ 448,644 
Ceded (102,570) (97,590)
Net written $ 381,705  $ 351,054 

Premiums earned:
Direct $ 467,022  $ 402,592 
Ceded (101,232) (93,074)
Net earned $ 365,790  $ 309,518 

The following table summarizes ceded losses and loss adjustment expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)
Ceded incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 48,927  $ 29,261 

The following table presents reinsurance recoverables on paid and unpaid losses as of March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024:
March 31, 2025 December 31, 2024

(in thousands)
Reinsurance recoverables on paid losses $ 15,691  $ 14,831 
Reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses, net 358,424  323,060 

Reinsurance recoverables, net $ 374,115  $ 337,891 

13.     Debt

Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreement

On July 22, 2022, the Company entered into a Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreement (as subsequently amended, the "Note Purchase Agreement") with
PGIM, Inc. ("Prudential") and the purchasers of the Series A and Series B Senior Notes (as defined below). The Note Purchase Agreement provides for
issuance of senior promissory notes with an aggregate principal amount of up to $200.0 million through September 18, 2026.

Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, on July 22, 2022, the Company issued $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.15% Series A Senior Notes
Due July 22, 2034 (collectively, the "Series A Notes"), and on September

22



Table of Contents

18, 2023, the Company issued a $50.0 million aggregate principal amount 6.21% Series B Senior Note ("Series B Note") due July 22, 2034.

The Series A and B Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and rank pari passu with the Company’s Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.

Principal payments on the Series A Notes are required annually beginning on July 22, 2030 in equal installments of $25.0 million through July 22, 2034.

Principal payments on the Series B Note are required annually beginning on July 22, 2030 in equal installments of $10.0 million through July 22, 2034.

Credit Agreement

On July 22, 2022, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and as
issuing bank, Truist Bank, as syndication agent, and the lenders party thereto (collectively, the "Lenders"). The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
provides the Company with a $100.0 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility"), with the option to increase the aggregate
commitment by $30.0 million. The Company is required to pay a Commitment Fee Rate (as defined therein) of 0.25% on the average daily amount of the
Available Revolving Commitment (as defined therein). Borrowings under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement may be used for general corporate
purposes (which may include, without limitation, to fund future growth, to finance working capital needs, to fund capital expenditures, and to refinance,
redeem or repay indebtedness).

The loans under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement bear interest, at the Company's option, at a rate equal to the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate (as
defined therein) plus 1.625% or the Alternate Base Rate (as defined therein) plus 0.625%. For the three months ended March 31, 2025, the annual weighted-
average interest rate of borrowings under the Credit Facility was 6.1%.

The following table presents the Company's outstanding debt as of March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024:

Issuance Maturity
March 31,

2025 December 31, 2024
(in thousands)

Credit Facility Various 7/22/2027 $ 11,000  $ 11,000 
5.15% Series A Notes 7/22/2022 7/22/2034 125,000  125,000 
6.21% Series B Note 9/18/2023 7/22/2034 50,000  50,000 
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs (1,809) (1,878)

Total debt $ 184,191  $ 184,122 

Both the Note Purchase Agreement and the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contain representations and affirmative and negative covenants, including
financial covenants customary for agreements of this type, as well as customary events of default provisions. As of March 31, 2025, the Company was in
compliance with all of its financial covenants under both the Note Purchase Agreement and the Credit Facility.

In October 2024, the covenants limiting restricted payments under the Note Purchase Agreement and Amended and Restated Credit Agreement were amended.
The amendments allow the Company to make restricted payments so long as the aggregate amount of all such restricted payments does not exceed the greater
of $300.0 million and 6.5% of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries at the end of the most recently completed fiscal quarter.
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14.     Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table summarizes the components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:
Three Months Ended March 31,

2025 2024
(in thousands)

Unrealized gains (losses) on fixed-maturity securities arising during the period, before
income taxes $ 33,357  $ (12,584)

Income tax (expense) benefit (7,005) 2,643 
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the period, net of income taxes 26,352  (9,941)

Less reclassification adjustment:
Net realized losses on fixed-maturity securities, before income taxes (18) (11)
Income tax benefit 4  2 
Reclassification adjustment included in net income (14) (9)
Change in allowance for credit losses on investments, before income taxes (20) 10 
Income tax benefit (expense) 4  (2)
Reclassification adjustment included in net income (16) 8 

Other comprehensive income (loss) $ 26,382  $ (9,940)

The sale or credit loss of an available-for-sale fixed-maturity security results in amounts being reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) to realized gains or losses in current period earnings. The related tax effect of the reclassification adjustment is recorded in income tax expense in current
period earnings. See Note 2 for additional information.

15.      Segment information
The Company has one reportable segment, the Excess and Surplus Lines Insurance segment, which primarily offers commercial excess and surplus lines
liability and property insurance products through its underwriting divisions in the United States. The Company reports operating and financial results in a
single segment based on the Company's exclusive focus on property and casualty insurance in the excess and surplus lines market and the consolidated
information used by the chief operating decision maker ("CODM") in evaluating the financial performance of its business and allocating resources.

The Company's CODM is the Chief Executive Officer. The CODM uses consolidated net income to allocate resources primarily during the annual budgeting
process and uses that measure to assess performance by considering budget-to-actual variances and evaluating financial results. The measure of segment assets
is reported on the consolidated balance sheets as total assets.
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Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)
Revenues:
Net earned premiums $ 365,790  $ 309,518 
Fee income 9,559  8,092 
Net investment income 43,819  32,933 
Change in fair value of equity securities 3,038  18,053 
Net realized investment gains 537  3,866 
Change in allowance for credit losses on investments (20) 10 
Other income 674  319 

Total revenues 423,397  372,791 
Expenses:
Losses and loss adjustment expenses – current year 225,047  194,654 
Losses and loss adjustment expenses – catastrophes 22,578  578 
Losses and loss adjustment expenses – prior year development (14,649) (8,446)
Net commissions incurred 35,680  31,539 
Salaries, employee benefits and bonus expense 29,209  24,716 
Credit loss expense – premiums receivable 3,124  4,263 
Depreciation 1,107  875 
Interest expense 2,538  2,422 
Other segment items 6,452  6,323 
Income tax expense 23,084  16,926 

Segment net income 89,227  98,941 
Reconciliation of profit or loss:
Adjustments and reconciling items —  — 

Consolidated net income $ 89,227  $ 98,941 

 Other income primarily includes income generated from the Company's real estate operations.

 Excludes depreciation expense allocated to loss adjustment expenses and investment expenses

 Other segment items primarily includes other general and administrative expenses such as technology costs, facility expenses and audit and
inspection costs.

16.     Contingencies

Contingencies arise in the normal conduct of the Company’s operations and are not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations. However, adverse outcomes are possible and could negatively affect the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

In June 2019, Marie Hughes, as authorized administrator for the estate of George Hughes, filed a wrongful death claim against Venetian Hills Apartments, LLC
("Venetian Hills") in DeKalb County in Georgia state court. On December 20, 2023, the jury awarded a verdict to the plaintiff of $140.0 million.

(1)

 (2)

 (3)

(1)

(2)

(3)
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Venetian Hills was a policyholder of a $1.0 million general liability policy issued by Kinsale Insurance. The Company believes exclusions in the policy apply
to the claim and intends to defend any action related to this proceeding vigorously. The Company has begun the appeal process and does not expect a resolution
as to the Company’s liability, if any, with respect to this matter in the foreseeable future, and potentially for multiple years.

The Company does not believe this legal proceeding will have a material adverse effect on its results of operations or business. The Company believes
adequate provision has been made in its consolidated financial statements and its existing reserves account for liabilities to the Company relating to claims such
as this legal proceeding.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The discussion and analysis below include certain forward-looking statements that are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors described in "Risk
Factors" in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024. Our actual results could
differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors.

The results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2025 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year ended
December 31, 2025, or for any other future period. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements and the notes thereto included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report, and in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

References to the "Company," "Kinsale," "we," "us," and "our" are to Kinsale Capital Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires.

Overview

Founded in 2009, Kinsale is a specialty insurance company. Kinsale focuses exclusively on the excess and surplus lines ("E&S") market in the U.S., where we
use our underwriting expertise to write coverages for hard-to-place small business risks and personal lines risks. We market these insurance products in all 50
states, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands, primarily through a network of independent insurance brokers.

We have one reportable segment, our Excess and Surplus Lines Insurance segment, which offers property and casualty ("P&C") insurance products through the
E&S market. For the first three months of 2025, the percentage breakdown of our gross written premiums was 72.5% casualty and 27.5% property. Our
commercial underwriting divisions include Commercial Property, Excess Casualty, Small Business Casualty, General Casualty, Construction, Allied Health,
Small Business Property, Products Liability, Entertainment, Commercial Auto, Energy, Excess Professional, Life Sciences, Professional Liability,
Environmental, Inland Marine, Health Care, Management Liability, Public Entity, Aviation, Agribusiness, Product Recall, Ocean Marine, and Railroad. We also
write homeowners' coverage in the personal lines market, which in aggregate represented 2.8% of our gross written premiums in the first three months of 2025.

Components of Our Results of Operations

Gross written premiums

Gross written premiums are the amounts received or to be received for insurance policies written or assumed by us during a specific period of time without
reduction for policy acquisition costs, reinsurance costs or other deductions. The volume of our gross written premiums in any given period is generally
influenced by:

• New business submissions;

• Conversion of new business submissions into policies;

• Renewals of existing policies; and

• Average size and premium rate of bound policies.
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We earn insurance premiums on a pro rata basis over the term of the policy. Our insurance policies generally have a term of one year. Net earned premiums
represent the earned portion of our gross written premiums, less that portion of our gross written premiums that is ceded to third-party reinsurers under our
reinsurance agreements.

Ceded written premiums

Ceded written premiums are the amount of gross written premiums ceded to reinsurers. We enter into reinsurance contracts to limit our exposure to potential
large losses. Ceded written premiums are earned over the reinsurance contract period in proportion to the period of risk covered. The volume of our ceded
written premiums is impacted by the level of our gross written premiums, any decision we make to increase or decrease retention levels and reinstatement
premiums, if any.

Fee income

Fee income includes policy fees charged to insureds and is recognized in earnings when the related premium is written. Policy fees are a flat charge to insureds
and fee income is impacted primarily by the volume of business we write.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses are a function of the amount and type of insurance contracts we write and the loss experience associated with the
underlying coverage. In general, our losses and loss adjustment expenses are affected by:

• Frequency of claims associated with the particular types of insurance contracts that we write;

• Trends in the average size of losses incurred on a particular type of business;

• Mix of business written by us;

• Changes in the legal or regulatory environment related to the business we write;

• Trends in legal defense costs;

• Wage inflation

• Social inflation;

• Inflation in material costs, and

• Inflation in medical costs.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses are based on an actuarial analysis of the estimated losses, including losses incurred during the period and changes in
estimates from prior periods. Losses and loss adjustment expenses may be paid out over a period of years.

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses include policy acquisition costs and other underwriting expenses. Policy acquisition costs are principally
composed of the commissions we pay our brokers, net of ceding commissions we receive on business ceded under certain reinsurance contracts. Policy
acquisition costs also include underwriting expenses that are directly related to the successful acquisition of those policies which are deferred. The amortization
of policy acquisition costs is charged to expense in proportion to premium earned over the policy life.

Other underwriting expenses represent the general and administrative expenses of our insurance business such as employment costs, telecommunication and
technology costs, and legal and auditing fees.
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Net investment income

Net investment income is an important component of our results of operations. We earn investment income on our portfolio of cash and invested assets. Our
cash and invested assets are primarily composed of fixed-maturity securities, and may also include cash equivalents, equity securities and short-term
investments. The principal factors that influence net investment income are the size of our investment portfolio and the yield on that portfolio. As measured by
amortized cost (which excludes changes in fair value), the size of our investment portfolio is mainly a function of our invested equity capital combined with
premiums we receive from our insureds less payments on policyholder claims. Net investment income also includes rental income and depreciation expense
from our real estate investment property, if any.

Change in fair value of equity securities

Change in fair value of equity securities represents the increase or decrease in the fair value of equity securities held during the period.

Net realized investment gains (losses)

Net realized investment gains (losses) are a function of the difference between the amount received by us on the sale of a security and the security's amortized
cost.

Income tax expense

Currently, substantially all of our income tax expense relates to federal income taxes. Our insurance subsidiary, Kinsale Insurance Company, is not subject to
income taxes in the states in which it operates; however, our non-insurance subsidiaries are subject to state income taxes, but have not generated any material
taxable income to date. The amount of income tax expense or benefit recorded in future periods will depend on the jurisdictions in which we operate and the
tax laws and regulations in effect.

Key metrics

We discuss certain key metrics, described below, which we believe provide useful information about our business and the operational factors underlying our
financial performance.

Underwriting income is a non-GAAP financial measure. We define underwriting income as net income, excluding net investment income, net change in the fair
value of equity securities, net realized investment gains and losses, change in allowance for credit losses on investments, interest expense, other income, other
expenses and income tax expense. See "—Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures" for a reconciliation of net income in accordance with GAAP to
underwriting income.

Net operating earnings is a non-GAAP financial measure. We define net operating earnings as net income excluding the net change in the fair value of equity
securities, after taxes, net realized investment gains and losses, after taxes and change in allowance for credit losses on investments, after taxes. See "—
Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures" for a reconciliation of net income in accordance with GAAP to net operating earnings.

Loss ratio, expressed as a percentage, is the ratio of losses and loss adjustment expenses to the sum of net earned premiums and fee income.

Expense ratio, expressed as a percentage, is the ratio of underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses to the sum of net earned premiums and fee income.

Combined ratio is the sum of the loss ratio and the expense ratio. A combined ratio under 100% indicates an underwriting profit. A combined ratio over 100%
indicates an underwriting loss.
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Return on equity is net income expressed on an annualized basis as a percentage of average beginning and ending total stockholders’ equity during the period.

Operating return on equity is a non-GAAP financial measure. We define operating return on equity as net operating earnings expressed on an annualized basis
as a percentage of average beginning and ending total stockholders’ equity during the period. See "—Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures" for a
reconciliation of net income in accordance with GAAP to net operating earnings.

Net retention ratio is the ratio of net written premiums to gross written premiums.

Gross investment return is investment income from fixed-maturity and equity securities (and short-term investments, if any), before any deductions for fees and
expenses, expressed as a percentage of the average beginning and ending book values of those investments during the period.
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Results of Operations

Three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to three months ended March 31, 2024
The following table summarizes our results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
($ in thousands) 2025 2024 Change % Change
Gross written premiums $ 484,275  $ 448,644  $ 35,631  7.9 %
Ceded written premiums (102,570) (97,590) (4,980) 5.1 %

Net written premiums $ 381,705  $ 351,054  $ 30,651  8.7 %

Net earned premiums $ 365,790  $ 309,518  $ 56,272  18.2 %
Fee income 9,559  8,092  1,467  18.1 %
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 232,976  186,786  46,190  24.7 %
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses 74,912  65,753  9,159  13.9 %

Underwriting income 67,461  65,071  2,390  3.7 %
Net investment income 43,819  32,933  10,886  33.1 %
Change in fair value of equity securities 3,038  18,053  (15,015) NM
Net realized investment gains 537  3,866  (3,329) NM
Change in allowance for credit losses on investments (20) 10  (30) NM
Interest expense (2,538) (2,422) (116) 4.8 %
Other income (expense), net 14  (1,644) 1,658  NM

Income before taxes 112,311  115,867  (3,556) (3.1)%
Income tax expense 23,084  16,926  6,158  36.4 %

Net income $ 89,227  $ 98,941  $ (9,714) (9.8)%

Net operating earnings $ 86,419  $ 81,617  $ 4,802  5.9 %

Loss ratio 62.1 % 58.8 %
Expense ratio 20.0 % 20.7 %
Combined ratio 82.1 % 79.5 %

Annualized return on equity 23.3 % 35.1 %
Annualized operating return on equity 22.5 % 28.9 %

NM - Percentage change not meaningful.

Underwriting income is a non-GAAP financial measure. See "—Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures" for a reconciliation of net income in accordance
with GAAP to underwriting income.

Net operating earnings and annualized operating return on equity are non-GAAP financial measures. Net operating earnings is defined as net income excluding the net
change in the fair value of equity securities, after taxes, net realized investment gains and losses, after taxes, and change in allowance for credit losses on investments,
after taxes. Annualized operating return on equity is defined as net operating earnings expressed on an annualized basis as a percentage of average beginning and
ending total stockholders’ equity during the period. See "—Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures" for a reconciliation of net income in accordance with
GAAP to net operating earnings.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(2)

(1) 

(2) 
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The combined ratio is the sum of the loss ratio and expense ratio as presented. Calculations of each component may not add due to rounding.

Overview

Net income was $89.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to $98.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of
9.8%. The decrease in net income for the first three months of 2025 over the same period last year was primarily due to a combination of higher catastrophe
losses incurred during the period and lower unrealized gains on equity investments offset in part by continued profitable growth and an increase in net
investment income.

Underwriting income was $67.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to $65.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an
increase of 3.7%. The corresponding combined ratios were 82.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to 79.5% for the three months ended
March 31, 2024. The increase in underwriting income for the first three months of 2025 compared to the same period last year was primarily due to continued
growth in the business offset in part by higher catastrophe losses incurred.

Premiums

Gross written premiums were $484.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to $448.6 million for the three months ended March 31,
2024, an increase of $35.6 million, or 7.9%. Gross written premiums in our Commercial Property Division, our largest division, decreased 18.4% relative to the
prior year period due to rate declines and an increasingly competitive environment including from standard carriers. Excluding our Commercial Property
Division, gross written premiums grew 16.7%. The average premium per policy written was $14,200 in the first three months of 2025 compared to $15,300 in
the first three months of 2024. Excluding our personal insurance division, which has a relatively low premium per policy written, the average premium per
policy written was $14,700 for the first three months of 2025 and $16,000 for the first three months of 2024. The decrease in average premium per policy for
the first three months of 2025 over the same period last year was due primarily to a decrease in gross written premiums in our Commercial Property Division.

Net written premiums increased by $30.7 million, or 8.7%, to $381.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 from $351.1 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2024. The increase in net written premiums for the first three months of 2025 compared to the same period last year was primarily due
to higher gross written premiums. The net retention ratio was 78.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to 78.2% for the same period last
year. The increase in the net retention ratio was primarily due to an increase in our retention on our casualty treaty effective with the June 2024 renewal and
change in the mix of business.

Net earned premiums increased by $56.3 million, or 18.2%, to $365.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 from $309.5 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2024 due to growth in gross written premiums.

(3) 
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Loss ratio

The following table summarizes the loss ratios for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

($ in thousands)
Losses and Loss

Adjustment Expenses

% of Sum of Earned
Premiums and Fee

Income
Losses and Loss

Adjustment Expenses

% of Sum of Earned
Premiums and Fee

Income
Loss ratio:

Current accident year before catastrophe
losses $ 225,047  60.0 % $ 194,654  61.3 %

Current year catastrophe losses 22,578  6.0 % 578  0.2 %
Effect of prior year development (14,649) (3.9)% (8,446) (2.7)%

Total $ 232,976  62.1 % $ 186,786  58.8 %

The loss ratio was 62.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to 58.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2024. The increase in the loss
ratio for the first three months of 2025 compared to the first three months of 2024 was due primarily to higher catastrophe losses incurred in the period. This
increase was offset in part by a lower current accident year loss ratio and higher relative net favorable development of prior-year loss reserves both of which
were the result of lower-than-expected reported losses particularly in our property lines of business. Net catastrophe losses incurred during the three months
ended March 31, 2025 were primarily related to the Palisades Fire.

During the three months ended March 31, 2025, prior accident years developed favorably by $14.6 million, of which $16.7 million was attributable to the 2021
through 2024 accident years due to lower emergence of reported losses than expected across most lines of business. This favorable development was offset in
part by adverse development primarily from the 2017 through 2019 accident years and more conservative actuarial assumptions in the 2021 through 2023
accident years for lines of business exposed to construction liability.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, prior accident years developed favorably by $8.4 million, of which $16.3 million was attributable to the 2021
through 2023 accident years due to lower emergence of reported losses than expected across most lines of business. This favorable development was offset in
part by adverse development primarily from the 2018 and 2019 accident years due to construction defect claims and from the 2020 accident year due to a large
property claim.
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Expense ratio

The following table summarizes the components of the expense ratio for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

($ in thousands)
Underwriting

Expenses

% of Sum of Earned
Premiums and Fee

Income
Underwriting

Expenses

% of Sum of Earned
Premiums and Fee

Income
Net commissions incurred 35,680  9.5 % 31,539  9.9 %
Other underwriting expenses 39,232  10.5 % 34,214  10.8 %

Total $ 74,912  20.0 % $ 65,753  20.7 %

The expense ratio was 20.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to 20.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2024. The decrease in the
expense ratio was primarily due to lower relative net commissions due to higher ceding commissions earned under the commercial property quota share treaty
as a result of an increase to the ceding commission rate effective with the June 2024 renewal. Direct commissions paid as a percentage of gross written
premiums was 14.8% and 14.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Investing results

The following table summarizes net investment income, change in the fair value of equity securities and net realized investment gains for the three months
ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Three Months Ended March 31,
($ in thousands) 2025 2024 Change
Interest from fixed-maturity securities $ 41,838  $ 31,830  $ 10,008 
Dividends from equity securities 1,953  1,376  577 
Cash equivalents and short-term investments 1,130  543  587 
Real estate investment income —  153  (153)

Gross investment income 44,921  33,902  11,019 
Investment expenses (1,102) (969) (133)

Net investment income 43,819  32,933  10,886 
Change in fair value of equity securities 3,038  18,053  (15,015)
Net realized investment gains 537  3,866  (3,329)
Change in allowance for credit losses on investments (20) 10  (30)

Net realized and unrealized investment gains 3,555  21,929  (18,374)
Total $ 47,374  $ 54,862  $ (7,488)

Net investment income increased by 33.1% to $43.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 from $32.9 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2024. The increase in the first three months of 2025 compared to the same period last year was primarily due to growth in our investment portfolio
largely generated from the investment of strong operating cash flows. Our investment portfolio, excluding cash equivalents and unrealized gains and losses,
had an annualized gross investment return of 4.3% for both the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024.
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During the first three months of 2025, the change in fair value of equity securities of $3.0 million reflected primarily unrealized gains arising during the period
on our common stock holdings of $9.4 million offset in part by a decline in the fair value of our exchange traded funds ("ETFs") of $(6.5) million.

During the first quarter of 2024, the change in fair value of equity securities of $18.1 million included changes in unrealized gains related to ETFs and common
stocks of $16.6 million and changes in unrealized gains related to non-redeemable preferred stock of $1.5 million. The change in the fair value of ETFs and
common stocks during the first three months of 2024 primarily reflected higher valuations in the broader U.S. stock market.

Net realized investment gains were $0.5 million and $3.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively and were primarily related
to sales of common stocks and ETFs due to opportunistic repositioning of our equity portfolio.

We perform quarterly reviews of all available-for-sale securities within our investment portfolio to determine whether the decline in a security's fair value is
deemed to be a credit loss. Based on our review, we recorded credit loss expense of less than $0.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025. See Note
2 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements for further information regarding credit losses.

Income tax expense

Our effective tax rate was 20.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to 14.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2024. The effective tax
rate was lower than the federal statutory rate of 21% primarily due to the tax benefits from stock-based compensation, including stock options exercised, and
from tax-exempt investment income. The effective tax rate was higher for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to the same period in 2024 due
primarily to a lower volume of stock option exercises.

Return on equity

Our annualized return on equity was 23.3% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to 35.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2024. Our
annualized operating return on equity was 22.5% for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to 28.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2024.
The decrease in annualized operating return on equity for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to the prior period was due primarily to higher
average stockholders' equity and higher net catastrophe losses primarily related to the Palisades Fire. Average stockholder's equity increased as a result of
profitable growth and an increase in the fair value of our fixed income portfolio.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources and uses of funds

We are organized as a Delaware holding company with our operations primarily conducted by our wholly-owned insurance subsidiary, Kinsale Insurance
Company, which is domiciled in Arkansas. Accordingly, we primarily receive cash through (1) loans from banks and other third parties, (2) issuance of equity
and debt securities, (3) corporate service fees from our insurance subsidiary, (4) payments from our subsidiaries pursuant to our consolidated tax allocation
agreement and other transactions, and (5) dividends from our insurance subsidiary. We may use the proceeds from these sources to contribute funds to Kinsale
Insurance in order to support premium growth, reduce our reliance on reinsurance, pay dividends and taxes, repurchase shares and for other business purposes.

We receive corporate service fees from Kinsale Insurance Company to reimburse us for most of the operating expenses that we incur. Reimbursement of
expenses through corporate service fees is based on the actual costs that we expect to incur with no mark-up above our expected costs.

35



Table of Contents

Shelf registration

In August 2022, we filed a universal shelf registration statement with the SEC that expires in 2025. We can use this shelf registration to issue an unspecified
amount of common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares and warrants. The specific terms of any securities we issue under this registration statement will be
provided in the applicable prospectus supplements.

Share repurchase program

In October 2024, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to $100.0 million of the
Company's common stock. The shares may be repurchased from time to time in open market purchases, privately-negotiated transactions, block purchases,
accelerated share repurchase agreements or a combination of methods and pursuant to safe harbors provided by Rule 10b-18 and Rule 10b5-1 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The timing, manner, price and amount of any repurchases under the share repurchase program will be determined by the
Company in its discretion. The stock repurchase program does not require the Company to repurchase any specific number of shares, and may be modified,
suspended or terminated at any time. At March 31, 2025, the Company had $80.0 million of capacity remaining under its share repurchase program.

Debt

In July 2022, we entered into a Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreement (the "Note Purchase Agreement"), which provides for the issuance of senior
promissory notes with an aggregate principal amount of up to $150.0 million. In September 2023, we amended the Note Purchase Agreement, which increased
the authorized aggregate principal amount of senior promissory notes that may be issued thereunder to $200.0 million.

Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, on July 22, 2022 we issued $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.15% senior promissory notes (the
“Series A Notes”) and on September 18, 2023 we issued a $50.0 million aggregate principal amount 6.21% senior promissory note (the "Series B Note"), the
proceeds of which were used to fund surplus at Kinsale Insurance Company, refinance indebtedness and for general corporate purposes. See Note 13 for further
information regarding the Note Purchase Agreement.

In July 2022, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, which extended the maturity date to July 22, 2027, and increased the aggregate
commitment to $100.0 million, with the option to increase the aggregate commitment by $30.0 million, subject to certain conditions. Borrowings under the
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes (which may include, without limitation, to fund future growth, to finance
working capital needs, to fund capital expenditures, and to refinance, redeem or repay indebtedness). See Note 13 for further information regarding the
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.

In connection with the share repurchase authorization, in October 2024, the covenants limiting restricted payments under the Note Purchase Agreement and
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement were amended. The amendments allow the Company to make restricted payments so long as the aggregate amount of
all such restricted payments does not exceed the greater of $300.0 million and 6.5% of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries at the end of the
most recently completed fiscal quarter.

Management believes that the Company has sufficient liquidity available both in Kinsale and in its insurance subsidiary, Kinsale Insurance Company, as well
as in its other operating subsidiaries, to meet its operating cash needs and obligations and committed capital expenditures for the next 12 months.
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Cash flows

Our most significant source of cash is from premiums received from our insureds, which we generally receive at the beginning of the coverage period. Our
most significant cash outflow is for claims that arise when a policyholder incurs an insured loss. Because the payment of claims occurs after the receipt of the
premium, often years later, we invest the cash in investment securities that earn interest and dividends. We also use cash to pay commissions to insurance
brokers, as well as to pay operating expenses such as salaries, consulting services and taxes. As described under "—Reinsurance" below, we use reinsurance to
help manage the risk that we take related to the issuance of our policies. We cede, or pay out, part of the premiums we receive to our reinsurers and collect cash
back when losses subject to our reinsurance coverage are paid.

The timing of our cash flows from operating activities can vary among periods due to the timing by which payments are made or received. Some of our
payments and receipts, including loss settlements and subsequent reinsurance receipts, can be significant, so their timing can influence cash flows from
operating activities in any given period. Management believes that cash receipts from premiums, proceeds from investment sales and redemptions and
investment income are sufficient to cover cash outflows in the foreseeable future.

Our cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 were:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2025 2024

(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 229,779  $ 210,359 
Investing activities (180,961) (192,514)
Financing activities (20,005) (8,407)

Change in cash and cash equivalents $ 28,813  $ 9,438 

Net cash provided by operating activities was approximately $229.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to $210.4 million for the
same period in 2024. This increase was largely driven by higher premium volume and the timing of claim payments and reinsurance recoveries.

Net cash used in investing activities was $181.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to $192.5 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2024. Net cash used in investing activities during the first three months of 2025 included purchases of fixed-maturity securities of $369.5 million,
which included primarily corporate bonds and asset- and mortgage-backed securities. During the first three months of 2025, we received proceeds of $107.0
million from sales of fixed-maturity securities, largely corporate bonds, asset-backed securities and, to a lesser extent, municipal securities and $144.7 million
from redemptions and maturities of asset- and mortgage-backed securities and corporate bonds. For the three months ended March 31, 2025, purchases of
equity securities of $42.7 million consisted primarily of common stocks. During the first three months of 2025, we received proceeds of $11.6 million from
sales of common stocks. Cash used in investing activities was partially offset by unsettled purchases of cash equivalents totaling $15.0 million as of March 31,
2025.

Net cash used in investing activities of $192.5 million during the first three months of 2024 included purchases of fixed-maturity securities of $297.4 million,
which included primarily corporate bonds, asset- and mortgage-backed securities, and to a lesser extent, U.S. Treasuries and municipal securities. During the
first three months of 2024, we received proceeds of $67.8 million from sales of fixed-maturity securities, largely corporate bonds, municipal securities, U.S.
Treasuries and government agency bonds and $80.5 million from redemptions and maturities of asset- and mortgage-backed securities and corporate bonds.
For the three months ended March 31, 2024, purchases
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of equity securities of $49.8 million consisted of common stocks and ETFs. During the first three months of 2024, we received proceeds of $10.1 million from
sales of ETFs.

During the first three months of 2025, cash used in financing activities reflected dividends paid of $0.17 per common share, or $4.0 million in aggregate, share
repurchases of $10.0 million and payroll taxes withheld and remitted on restricted stock awards of $6.2 million, offset in part by proceeds received from our
equity compensation plans of $0.2 million.

During the first three months of 2024, cash used in financing reflected dividends paid of $0.15 per common share, or $3.5 million in aggregate. In addition, for
the three months ended March 31, 2024, payroll taxes withheld and remitted on restricted stock awards were $5.8 million, offset in part by proceeds received
from our equity compensation plans of $0.9 million.

Reinsurance

We enter into reinsurance contracts primarily to limit our exposure to potential large losses. Reinsurance involves an insurance company transferring ("ceding")
a portion of its exposure on a risk to another insurer, the reinsurer. The reinsurer assumes the exposure in return for a portion of the premium. Our reinsurance
is primarily contracted under quota share reinsurance treaties and excess of loss treaties. In quota share reinsurance, the reinsurer agrees to assume a specified
percentage of the ceding company's losses arising out of a defined class of business in exchange for a corresponding percentage of premiums, net of a ceding
commission. In excess of loss reinsurance, the reinsurer agrees to assume all or a portion of the ceding company's losses, in excess of a specified amount.
Under excess of loss reinsurance, the premium payable to the reinsurer is negotiated by the parties based on their assessment of the amount of risk being ceded
to the reinsurer because the reinsurer does not share proportionately in the ceding company's losses.

We renew our reinsurance treaties annually. During each renewal cycle, there are a number of factors we consider when determining our reinsurance coverage,
including (1) plans to change the underlying insurance coverage we offer, (2) trends in loss activity, (3) the level of our capital and surplus, (4) changes in our
risk appetite and (5) the cost and availability of reinsurance coverage.

To manage our natural catastrophe exposure, we use stochastic models to analyze the risk of severe losses. We measure exposure to these losses in terms of
probable maximum loss ("PML"), which is an estimate of the amount of loss we would expect to meet or exceed once in a given number of years (referred to
as the return period). When managing our catastrophe exposure, we generally focus on the 100-year and the 250-year return periods.

The following is a summary of our significant reinsurance programs as of March 31, 2025:

Line of Business Covered Company Policy Limit Reinsurance Coverage Company Retention
Property (1) Up to $10.0 million per occurrence 50% up to $379.8 million per

catastrophe
50% of commercial property losses

Property – catastrophe (2) N/A $175.0 million excess of $60.0
million

$60.0 million per catastrophe

Primary casualty (3) Up to $10.0 million per occurrence $8.0 million excess of $2.0 million $2.0 million per occurrence
Excess casualty (4) Up to $10.0 million per occurrence Variable quota share $2.5 million per occurrence as

described in note (4) below
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(1)    Our property quota share reinsurance reduces the financial impact of property losses on our commercial property, small business property, high value
homeowners and inland marine policies up to a loss recovery of $189.9 million for an event. This reinsurance is not applicable to any individual policy
with a limit of $2.0 million or less.

(2)    Our property catastrophe reinsurance reduces the financial impact of a catastrophe event involving multiple claims and policyholders. Our property
catastrophe reinsurance includes a reinstatement provision which requires us to pay reinstatement premiums after a loss has occurred in order to preserve
coverage. Including the reinstatement of coverage, the maximum aggregate loss recovery limit is $350.0 million. This coverage applies after the coverage
provided by the commercial property quota share treaty.

(3)    This reinsurance is not applicable to any individual policy with a per-occurrence limit of $2.0 million or less.

(4)    For excess casualty policies with a per-occurrence limit higher than $2.5 million, the ceding percentage varies such that the retention is always $2.5
million or less. For example, for a $5.0 million limit excess policy, our retention would be 50%, whereas for a $10.0 million limit excess policy, our
retention would be 25%. For policies for which we also write an underlying primary limit, the combined retention on the primary and excess policies
would not exceed $2.5 million. This reinsurance is not applicable to any individual policy with a per-occurrence limit of $2.5 million or less.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve us from our obligations to policyholders. Failure of the reinsurer to honor its obligation could result in losses to us, and
therefore, we established an allowance for credit risk based on historical analysis of credit losses for highly rated companies in the insurance industry. In
formulating our reinsurance programs, we are selective in our choice of reinsurers and we consider numerous factors, the most important of which are the
financial stability of the reinsurer, its history of responding to claims and its overall reputation. In an effort to minimize our exposure to the insolvency of our
reinsurers, we review the financial condition of each reinsurer regularly. In addition, we continually monitor for rating downgrades involving any of our
reinsurers. At March 31, 2025, all reinsurance contracts that our insurance subsidiary was a party to were with companies with A.M. Best ratings of "A-"
(Excellent) or better. As of March 31, 2025, we recorded an allowance for credit losses of $0.9 million related to our reinsurance balances.

Ratings

Kinsale Insurance Company has a financial strength rating of "A" (Excellent) with a stable outlook from A.M. Best. A.M. Best assigns ratings to insurance
companies, which currently range from "A++" (Superior) to "F" (In Liquidation). "A" (Excellent) is the third highest rating issued by A.M. Best. The "A"
(Excellent) rating is assigned to insurers that have, in A.M. Best's opinion, an excellent ability to meet their ongoing obligations to policyholders. This rating is
intended to provide an independent opinion of an insurer's ability to meet its obligation to policyholders and is not an evaluation directed at investors.

The financial strength ratings assigned by A.M. Best have an impact on the ability of the insurance companies to attract and retain agents and brokers and on
the risk profiles of the submissions for insurance that the insurance companies receive. The "A" (Excellent) rating obtained by Kinsale Insurance Company is
consistent with our business plan and allows us to actively pursue relationships with the agents and brokers identified in our marketing plan.

Financial Condition

Stockholders' equity

At March 31, 2025, total stockholders' equity and tangible stockholders' equity were $1.6 billion compared to total stockholders' equity and tangible
stockholders' equity of $1.5 billion at December 31, 2024. The increases in both
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total and tangible stockholders' equity over the prior year-end balances were due to profits generated during the period and an increase in the fair value of our
fixed-maturity investments offset in part by share repurchases, payment of dividends and net activity related to our share-based compensation plan. Tangible
stockholders’ equity is a non-GAAP financial measure. See "—Reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures" for a reconciliation of stockholders' equity in
accordance with GAAP to tangible stockholders' equity.

Investment portfolio

At March 31, 2025, our cash and invested assets of $4.3 billion consisted of fixed-maturity securities, equity securities, short-term investments, cash and cash
equivalents and real estate investments. At March 31, 2025, the majority of the investment portfolio was composed of fixed-maturity securities of $3.7 billion
that were classified as available-for-sale. Available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses on these securities, net of
applicable taxes, reported as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income. At March 31, 2025, we also held $433.1 million of equity
securities, which included common stocks, ETFs and non-redeemable preferred stock, $38.8 million of short-term investments, $142.0 million of cash and cash
equivalents and $15.0 million of real estate investments.

Our fixed-maturity securities, including cash equivalents, had a weighted average duration of 3.0 years at both March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024 and an
average rating of "AA-" at both March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024.

At March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the amortized cost and estimated fair value on fixed-maturity securities were as follows:

March 31, 2025 December 31, 2024

Amortized Cost
Estimated Fair

Value
% of Total Fair

Value Amortized Cost
Estimated Fair

Value
% of Total Fair

Value
($ in thousands)

Fixed-maturity securities:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government agencies $ 7,833  $ 7,550  0.2 % $ 15,465  $ 15,048  0.4 %
Obligations of states, municipalities and political

subdivisions 164,845  144,360  3.9 % 168,894  146,304  4.1 %
Corporate and other securities 2,117,109  2,087,105  56.2 % 2,037,372  1,989,490  56.3 %
Asset-backed securities 737,396  742,725  20.0 % 729,658  732,742  20.7 %
Residential mortgage-backed securities 554,216  510,019  13.7 % 502,121  448,874  12.7 %
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 226,947  224,494  6.0 % 209,521  205,105  5.8 %

Total fixed-maturity securities $ 3,808,346  $ 3,716,253  100.0 % $ 3,663,031  $ 3,537,563  100.0 %
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The table below summarizes the credit quality of our fixed-maturity securities at March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, as rated by Standard & Poor’s
Financial Services, LLC ("Standard & Poor's"):

March 31, 2025 December 31, 2024
Standard & Poor’s or Equivalent Designation Estimated Fair Value % of Total Estimated Fair Value % of Total

($ in thousands)
AAA $ 1,119,861  30.1 % $ 1,034,025  29.2 %
AA 621,159  16.7 % 620,550  17.5 %
A 1,223,001  32.9 % 1,166,923  33.0 %
BBB 685,916  18.5 % 652,631  18.5 %
Below BBB and unrated 66,316  1.8 % 63,434  1.8 %

Total $ 3,716,253  100.0 % $ 3,537,563  100.0 %

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of our fixed-maturity securities summarized by contractual maturity as of March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024,
were as follows:

March 31, 2025 December 31, 2024
Amortized

Cost
Estimated Fair

Value
% of Total Fair

Value
Amortized

Cost
Estimated Fair

Value
% of Total Fair

Value
($ in thousands)

Due in one year or less $ 410,141  $ 410,644  11.0 % $ 415,494  $ 415,674  11.8 %
Due after one year through five years 1,080,085  1,076,016  29.0 % 1,070,687  1,058,729  29.9 %
Due after five years through ten years 569,277  560,390  15.1 % 513,549  496,044  14.0 %
Due after ten years 230,284  191,965  5.2 % 222,001  180,395  5.1 %
Asset-backed securities 737,396  742,725  20.0 % 729,658  732,742  20.7 %
Residential mortgage-backed securities 554,216  510,019  13.7 % 502,121  448,874  12.7 %
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 226,947  224,494  6.0 % 209,521  205,105  5.8 %

Total fixed-maturity securities $ 3,808,346  $ 3,716,253  100.0 % $ 3,663,031  $ 3,537,563  100.0 %

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because some borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties.

Restricted investments

In order to conduct business in certain states, we are required to maintain letters of credit or assets on deposit to support state-mandated insurance regulatory
requirements and to comply with certain third-party agreements. Assets held on deposit or in trust accounts are primarily in the form of high-grade securities.
The fair value of our restricted assets was $3.9 million and $3.7 million at March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Reconciliation of underwriting income

Underwriting income is a non-GAAP financial measure that we believe is useful in evaluating our underwriting performance without regard to investment
income. Underwriting income is defined as net income excluding net investment income, the net change in the fair value of equity securities, net realized
investment gains and losses, change in allowance for credit losses on investments, interest expense, other expenses, other income and income tax expense. We
use underwriting income as an internal performance measure in the management of our operations
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because we believe it gives us and users of our financial information useful insight into our results of operations and our underlying business performance.
Underwriting income should not be viewed as a substitute for net income calculated in accordance with GAAP, and other companies may define underwriting
income differently.

Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, reconciles to underwriting income as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,
($ in thousands) 2025 2024

Net income $ 89,227  $ 98,941 
Income tax expense 23,084  16,926 

Income before income taxes 112,311  115,867 
Net investment income (43,819) (32,933)
Change in the fair value of equity securities (3,038) (18,053)
Net realized investment gains (537) (3,866)
Change in allowance for credit losses on investments 20  (10)
Interest expense 2,538  2,422 
Other expenses 660  1,963 
Other income (674) (319)

Underwriting income $ 67,461  $ 65,071 

 Other expenses includes primarily corporate expenses not allocated to our insurance operations.

(1)

(1)
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Reconciliation of net operating earnings

Net operating earnings is defined as net income excluding the effects of the net change in the fair value of equity securities, after taxes, net realized investment
gains and losses, after taxes, and the change in allowance for credit losses on investments, after taxes. We believe the exclusion of these items provides a useful
comparison of our underlying business performance from period to period. Net operating earnings and percentages or calculations using net operating earnings
(e.g., diluted operating earnings per share and annualized operating return on equity) are non-GAAP financial measures. Net operating earnings should not be
viewed as a substitute for net income calculated in accordance with GAAP, and other companies may define net operating earnings differently.

Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, reconciles to net operating earnings as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,
($ in thousands) 2025 2024

Net income $ 89,227  $ 98,941 
Adjustments:

Change in the fair value of equity securities, before taxes (3,038) (18,053)
Income tax expense 638  3,791 

Change in the fair value of equity securities, after taxes (2,400) (14,262)

Net realized investment gains, before taxes (537) (3,866)
Income tax expense 113  812 

Net realized investment gains, after taxes (424) (3,054)

Change in allowance for credit losses on investments, before taxes 20  (10)
Income tax (benefit) expense (4) 2 

Change in allowance for credit losses on investments, after taxes 16  (8)
Net operating earnings $ 86,419  $ 81,617 

Operating return on equity:
Average stockholders' equity $ 1,533,268  $ 1,128,901 
Annualized return on equity 23.3 % 35.1 %
Annualized operating return on equity 22.5 % 28.9 %

Income taxes on adjustments to reconcile net income to net operating earnings use an effective tax rate of 21%.

Average stockholders' equity is computed by adding the total stockholders' equity as of the date indicated to the prior quarter-end or year-end total, as
applicable, and dividing by two.

Annualized return on equity is net income expressed on an annualized basis as a percentage of average beginning and ending stockholders' equity
during the period.

Annualized operating return on equity is net operating earnings expressed on an annualized basis as a percentage of average beginning and ending
stockholders' equity during the period.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 
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Reconciliation of tangible stockholders' equity

Tangible stockholders’ equity is defined as total stockholders’ equity less intangible assets, net of deferred taxes. Our definition of tangible stockholders’ equity
may not be comparable to that of other companies, and it should not be viewed as a substitute for stockholders’ equity calculated in accordance with GAAP. We
use tangible stockholders' equity internally to evaluate the strength of our balance sheet and to compare returns relative to this measure.

Stockholders' equity at March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, reconciles to tangible stockholders' equity as follows:

($ in thousands) March 31, 2025 December 31, 2024
Stockholders' equity $ 1,582,975  $ 1,483,561 
Less: intangible assets, net of deferred taxes 2,795  2,795 
Tangible stockholders' equity $ 1,580,180  $ 1,480,766 

Critical Accounting Estimates

We identified the accounting estimates which are critical to the understanding of our financial position and results of operations. Critical accounting estimates
are defined as those estimates that are both important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and require us to exercise significant
judgment. We use significant judgment concerning future results and developments in applying these critical accounting estimates and in preparing our
condensed consolidated financial statements. These judgments and estimates affect our reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosure of our material contingent assets and liabilities, if any. Actual results may differ materially from the estimates and assumptions used in preparing the
condensed consolidated financial statements. We evaluate our estimates regularly using information that we believe to be relevant. Our critical accounting
policies and estimates are described in our annual consolidated financial statements and the related notes in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2024.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of economic losses due to adverse changes in the estimated fair value of a financial instrument as the result of changes in interest rates,
equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices. Our primary market risks have been equity price risk associated with investments in
equity securities and interest rate risk associated with investments in fixed maturities. We do not have any material exposure to foreign currency exchange rate
risk or commodity risk.

There have been no material changes in market risk from the information provided in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms,
and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer
("CFO"), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required financial disclosure.
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As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of
our management, including our CEO and CFO, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures defined under Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based upon this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of that date.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the first quarter of 2025 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls
The effectiveness of any system of controls and procedures is subject to certain limitations, and, as a result, there can be no assurance that our controls and
procedures will detect all errors or fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the control system will be attained.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are party to legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. We believe that the outcome of such matters, individually and in the
aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our condensed consolidated financial position. Refer to Note 16 of the notes to the condensed consolidated
financial statements for further information regarding legal proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should carefully consider
the risks and uncertainties described under the heading "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2024 (our "2024 Form 10-K"), as updated and supplemented by the below risk factor. The below risk factor updates the risk factor captioned "Adverse
economic factors, including recession, inflation, periods of high unemployment or lower economic activity could result in the sale of fewer policies than
expected or an increase in frequency or severity of claims and premium defaults or both, which, in turn, could affect our growth and profitability." in our 2024
Form 10-K. These risks and uncertainties are not the only ones facing us. There may be additional risks and uncertainties of which we are currently unaware or
currently believe to be immaterial. The occurrence of any of these risks could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, liquidity, results
of operations and prospects.

Adverse economic factors, including recession, inflation, periods of high unemployment or lower economic activity could result in the sale of fewer policies
than expected or an increase in frequency or severity of claims and premium defaults or both, which, in turn, could affect our growth and profitability.

Factors, such as business revenue, economic conditions, the volatility and strength of the capital markets and inflation can affect the business and economic
environment. These same factors affect our ability to generate revenue and profits. It is possible that, among other things, changes in international trade
regulation, including tariffs, could lead to higher than anticipated inflation. In an economic downturn that is characterized by higher unemployment, declining
spending and reduced corporate revenues, the demand for insurance products is generally adversely affected, which directly affects our premium levels and
profitability. Negative economic factors may also affect our ability to receive the appropriate rate for the risk we insure with our policyholders and may
adversely affect the number of policies we can write, including with respect to our opportunities to underwrite profitable business. In an economic downturn,
our customers may have less need for insurance coverage, cancel existing insurance policies, modify their coverage or not renew the policies they hold with us.
Existing policyholders may exaggerate or even falsify claims to obtain higher claims payments. These outcomes would reduce our underwriting profit to the
extent these factors are not reflected in the rates we charge.

We underwrite a significant portion of our insurance in California, Florida and Texas. Any economic downturn in any such state could have an adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

The table below sets forth information regarding repurchases by the Company of its common stock during the periods indicated.

Period
Beginning

Period
Ending

Total
number
of shares

purchased

Average
price

paid per
share

Total number of
shares purchased

as part of
publicly announced
plans or programs

Approximate
dollar value

of
shares that

may yet be purchased
under the

plans or programs
(in millions)

January 1, 2025 January 31, 2025 —  $ —  —  $ 90.0 
February 1, 2025 February 28, 2025 23,348  $ 428.28  23,348  $ 80.0 

March 1, 2025 March 31, 2025 —  $ —  —  $ 80.0 
Total 23,348  $ 428.28  23,348  $ 80.0 

(1) In October 2024, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to $100.0 million of the
Company's common stock. The shares may be repurchased from time to time in open market purchases, privately-negotiated transactions, block purchases,
accelerated share repurchase agreements or a combination of methods and pursuant to safe harbors provided by Rule 10b-18 and Rule 10b5-1 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The timing, manner, price and amount of any repurchases under the share repurchase program will be determined by the
Company in its discretion. The stock repurchase program does not require the Company to repurchase any specific number of shares and may be modified,
suspended or terminated at any time.

Item 5. Other Information

Securities Trading Plans of Directors and Executive Officers

Transactions in our securities by our non-employee directors and executive officers are required to be made in accordance with our Policy on the Prevention of
Insider Trading and Selective Disclosure (the "Insider Trading Policy"), which, among other things, requires that the transactions be in accordance with
applicable U.S. federal securities laws that prohibit trading while in possession of material nonpublic information. Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act
provides an affirmative defense that enables prearranged transactions in securities in a manner that avoids concerns about initiating transactions at a future date
while possibly in possession of material nonpublic information. Our Insider Trading Policy permits our non-employee directors and executive officers to enter
into trading plans designed to comply with Rule 10b5-1.

During the first quarter of 2025, none of our non-employee directors or executive officers adopted, modified or terminated a Rule 10b5-1 trading plan or
adopted, modified or terminated a non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement (as defined in Item 408(c) of Regulation S-K).

(1)
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Kinsale Capital Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 24, 2018)
3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Kinsale Capital Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report

on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 18, 2023)
31.1 Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of principal financial officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS ** XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

* This certification is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall it be
deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act.

** The instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

KINSALE CAPITAL GROUP, INC.

Date: April 24, 2025 By: /s/ Michael P. Kehoe
Michael P. Kehoe
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 24, 2025 By: /s/ Bryan P. Petrucelli
Bryan P. Petrucelli
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Michael P. Kehoe, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Kinsale Capital Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f),
for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

April 24, 2025 /s/ Michael P. Kehoe
Michael P. Kehoe
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Bryan P. Petrucelli, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Kinsale Capital Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f),
for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

April 24, 2025 /s/ Bryan P. Petrucelli
Bryan P. Petrucelli
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Kinsale Capital Group, Inc. (the "Company") for the period ended March 31, 2025 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Michael P. Kehoe, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

April 24, 2025 /s/ Michael P. Kehoe
Michael P. Kehoe
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Kinsale Capital Group, Inc. (the "Company") for the period ended March 31, 2025 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Bryan P. Petrucelli, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
of the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

April 24, 2025 /s/ Bryan P. Petrucelli
Bryan P. Petrucelli
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)


